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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The present structure is the result of at least 8 distinct building campaigns.

The original house (approximately 14'-0" x 14'-0") was built circa 1848-1853 and has been attributed to both Richard Winship and Eben Conant. Two walls of vertical plank construction from the original home remain at the north and west walls of the rear section of the existing home. The house was enlarged to the south with a two-story section at the southwest corner circa 1853 by Richard Winship. The foundation was rebuilt as part of a 2014-2015 renovation. 

The Winship house was later occupied by Jacob Davis and, finally, Henry A. Francisco. A two-story wing with a south-facing porch was constructed at the north side between 1863 and 1868 and is attributed to Henry A. Towner - who also added an addition to the rear of the Winship wing between 1870 and 1887 (removed before 1891). 

Around 1889, the Fifth Street wing was constructed for William and Elizabeth (Towner) Bentley. The addition included raising the roof of the 1860s Towner addition and resulted in a difference in second-floor levels within the house. The Bentley's also constructed a bay window at the north elevation between 1891 and 1897, replacing an earlier bay window that had been removed between 1870 and 1890. The south recessed porch was renovated at least twice between 1877 and 1923. Charles G. King renovated the house in 1946 (09 Aug. 1946 Geneva Republican - application) including the relocation and connection of the former carriage barn. Apparently, the work was not completed until 1950 (GHM file building permit).
 
The 2014-2015 renovation restored the Bentley-era historic windows, the Stick-style front porch, the entry staircase, the Eastlake hardware, and the installation of a foundation beneath the Winship wing. However, the renovation altered much of the interior, including the removal of the Bentley-era library and adjoining dining room (the space was converted to a new dining room, elevator shaft, and powder room); the destruction of the Bentley-era cut plaster moldings; the interior casework and trim; and two, Edwardian Era fireplace frontispieces along with their original, Art Nouveau tile surrounds.

The property is notable for its association with one or more significant persons, architecture—specifically methods of construction and changes over time. The earliest sections of the house (at the rear) are notable for their association with community development—specifically the Early Settlement Period of Geneva (1837-1857).
	SOURCES: GHPC Case History; GHM Archives; 2016 Central Geneva NRHP Update; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; 1869 Birds Eye Map; Kane County Recorder's Office Land Records
	AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: Carriage Barn built circa 1870. Originally stood along Campbell Street, possibly moved before 1900. Moved 1946-1950; enlarged with rear addition and attached to home by breezeway. Separated from house and relocated in 2015 to southwest corner of property. Cupola and weather vane installed by Merritt, King, circa 1965-1970.
	AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: n/a
	GENERAL DESCRIPTION: Brick salvaged from Elgin, Illinois streets and used in 1946-1950 driveway from Campbell Street; re-purposed at new driveway from Fifth Street in 2015.
	LEFT STREET VIEW: 
	RIGHT STREET VIEW: 
	STREET VIEW: 
	ACCESSORY 1: 
	REAR CORNER/ ACCESSORY: 
	CORNER STREET/ ACCESSORY: 
	ACCESSORY 2: 
	ACCESSORY 3: 
	LANDSCAPE 1: 
	LANDSCAPE 2: 
	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 212 South Fifth Street
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1853, 1865, 1875, 1889, 1920
	ARCHITECT: n/a
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: Circa 1849-1850
	COMMON NAME: Towner House, Merritt King House
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: Davis-Bentley House
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: Stick, Queen Anne
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Rectangular, Irregular
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 2
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Limestone, Poured Concrete
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Clapboard
	FRONT PORCH: Yes
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: Yes 
	ENTRY DOORS: Original (1896)
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood
	WINDOW STYLE: Double-hung (1/1), Fixed (multiple lites)
	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Gable
	PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt
	VISIBLE CHIMNEY: Yes
	CHIMNEY MATERIAL: Brick
	OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: n/a
	PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PIN: 12-03-382-006
	BUILDER: Richard Winship, Eben Conant, et. al.
	WILSON BROTHERS: Off


